
Scrutiny Task and Finish  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 

 
Children Services Task and Finish Panel 
Tuesday, 25th January, 2011 
 
Place: Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Adrian Hendry, Office of the Chief Executive 
Tele: 01992 564246  Email: ahendry@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors Mrs L Wagland (Chairman), Ms R Brookes, Mrs P Brooks, Mrs T Cochrane, 
Mrs R Gadsby, Ms J Hedges and J Knapman 
 
 
 
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive)  To report the appointment of any substitute 
members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any items on the agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 4. NOTES FROM THE LAST MEETING  (Pages 5 - 16) 
 



Children Services Task and Finish Panel Tuesday, 25 January 2011 
 

2 

  To agree the minutes from the last meeting of this Panel, held on 5 November 2010. 
 

 5. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 
Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 

Paragraph Number 
6 Update on West Children’s 

Commissioning and 
Delivery Board 

3 

8 Local Priority Fund For 
Young People and 
Potential Reductions in 
Local Funding 

3 

 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 



Children Services Task and Finish Panel Tuesday, 25 January 2011 
 

3 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 6. UPDATE ON FURTHER REVIEW OF WEST CHILDREN'S COMMISSIONING AND 
DELIVERY BOARD (PREVIOUSLY WEST ESSEX CHILDREN'S TRUST BOARD)  
(Pages 17 - 20) 

 
  To receive draft proposals regarding the West Essex Children’s Commissioning and 

Delivery Board. 
 

 7. ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL REVIEW OF YOUTH SERVICES PROVISION   
 

  To receive an update report on the planned reductions in Essex Youth Service 
Provisions. 
 

 8. LOCAL PRIORITY FUND FOR YOUNG PEOPLE AND POTENTIAL REDUCTIONS 
IN LOCAL FUNDING  (Pages 21 - 32) 

 
  To receive an updating report. 

 
 9. POTENTIAL IMPACT OF REDUCED LEVEL OF LOCAL PROVISION FOR YOUNG 

PEOPLE   
 

  To consider implications for the Council. 
 

 10. FUTURE FUNDING OF CHILDREN'S AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S INITATIVES   
 

  To consider alternative funding opportunities for Children and Young People’s 
Services. 
 

 11. FUTURE GP COMMISSIONING OF HEALTH IMPROVEMENT SERVICES FOR 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE   

 
  To receive a report outlining the new GP commissioning services. 

 
 12. INVITATION TO ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL TO MEET WITH PANEL FOR 

QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION   
 

 13. REVIEW TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORK UNDERTAKEN BY PANEL TO 
DATE  (Pages 33 - 34) 

 
  (Chairman/Lead Officer) To note the attached Terms of Reference. The Panel are 

asked to review the document at each meeting.  
 

 14. TIMETABLE FOR PRODUCTION OF REPORT FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE   

 
  To agree a timetable for the production of this Panel’s final report to the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee by April 2011. 
 

 15. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   
 



Children Services Task and Finish Panel Tuesday, 25 January 2011 
 

4 

  To agree a date for the next meeting of this Panel. 
 

 



1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF CHILDREN SERVICES TASK AND FINISH PANEL  

HELD ON FRIDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2010 
IN COMMITTEE ROOM 2, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 

AT 2.00  - 4.40 PM 
 

Members 
Present: 

Mrs L Wagland (Legal and Estates Portfolio Holder) (Chairman),  , 
Ms R Brookes, Mrs P Brooks, Mrs T Cochrane, Mrs R Gadsby and 
Ms J Hedges 

  
Other members 
present: 

  
  
Apologies for 
Absence: 

J Knapman 
  
Officers Present J Chandler (Assistant Director (Community Services and Customer 

Relations)), F Hall (Arts Officer), G Wallis (Community Development 
Officer), J Warwick (Sports Development Manager) and A Hendry 
(Democratic Services Officer) 

 
6. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

 
The Panel noted that there were no substitute members. 
 

7. NOTES FROM LAST MEETING  
 
The notes from the meeting held on 21 September 2010 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

8. YOUTH COUNCILLORS MYSTERY SHOPPING REPORT  
 
The Community Development Officer, Gill Wallis, introduced the Youth Council’s 
mystery shopping report on youth clubs and venues in the district. Youth Councillors 
had taken on board the comments collated at their March Youth Conference which 
highlighted the fact that local young people felt there was a lack of places for them to 
go in the district. Members of the Youth Council initially mapped, then visited 12 
youth projects over a three month period from July to September 2010. They went 
‘undercover’ in two or threes to each of the venues and assessed them on such 
things as friendliness of staff, the range of activities on offer, opening times, 
promotion of the club and disability access. They later turned these into a star rating 
(given out of five stars) and gave feedback to each of the clubs. The ratings are to be 
published on the Council’s website along with the text of the report and contact 
details for each club. The settings visited were Essex County Council, District Council 
and Third Sector providers. The Youth Council were surprised at the amount of 
venues spread out over the district although they found the quality of the settings 
varied greatly.  
 
Youth Councillors then arranged a Presentation Evening on 26 October 2010 and 
awarded certificates and feedback sheets to each provider, along with a trophy to the 
“5 Star” winner, Youth Plus in Ongar. 
 
Councillor Mrs Wagland suggested that the tube map style information poster 
designed by the Youth Council be placed on the Council’s website and maybe 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



Children Services Task and Finish Panel Friday, 5 November 2010 

2 

awards be given out at the annual Civic Awards for best club and facilities to enable 
them to raise their profile. She also wanted the Youth Council to know about this 
Panel’s enthusiasm and appreciation for their work and gave a standing invitation for 
any members of the Youth Council who wished to, to come and talk to this meeting.  
 

9. REPORT BACK FROM COUNCILLORS  
 
It was noted that members of the Panel were asked to briefly report back to the other 
Panel members on progress made on their allotted research tasks.  
 
1. Councillor Janet Hedges reported that she had been looking into childhood 
obesity and in particular at the ‘MEND’ scheme. ‘MEND’ stands for “Mind, Exercise, 
Nutrition…Do it” and was started by Great Ormond Street Hospital and University 
College London to work with local, regional and national partners to deliver  healthy 
lifestyle programmes for children and their families. It was a 9 to 10 week intervention 
aimed at reducing childhood obesity. This had proved to be more sustainable in the 
long run and the participation of parents was essential to the success of the 
programme. The recipients could be self referred, or referred by a nurse or a GP, and 
would be in the age range of 7 to 13. There was evidence that any improvements 
made were sustained over a year later. In our District this programme was carried out 
in partnership with the County and Tottenham Football Club. Costs were mainly 
covered by the NHS although we put in some resources (mainly officer time) and so 
did Tottenham FC. It was a very time intensive programme and one or two families 
did tend to drop out after the first one or two sessions as they had to commit to two 
sessions a week for ten weeks. There was no evaluations built into the programme 
but the PCT did review it after six months. 
 
The Panel wondered what would happen once Tottenham FC moved out of the area 
and went to Enfield; but officers were minded to think that the club wanted to keep 
working in this area. They were at present having some formal discussions with them 
and it may be that there will eventually be some costs to the Council. 
 
2. Councillor T Cochrane reported back to the Panel on two playgrounds, one in 
Debden and the other in Waltham Abbey, that were due to be completed by March 
2011, at a cost of total of £44 thousand. This was a one off Capital Funding to 
enhance play facilities and enable disabled and able-bodied children to get together.  
 
The Councillor had found out that there were also some special ability sports clubs 
that enabled kids try out various sports, including a special educational needs 
trampolining project for primary school children. There was also a co-ordination 
programme for children with Dyspraxia and a lot of arts programmes, all project 
based, for people with special needs. The Panel were surprised at the amount of 
programmes that were available. The real difficulty was communicating this to the 
individuals concerned who, understandably, did not want to go to a place especially 
set up for “disabled” people. 
 
3. Councillor R Brookes had looked into general activities for children including 
the trampolining programme for Children with additional needs. She had produced a 
written report which she tabled and which is attached to this set of minutes. The 
trampolining programme was to help children who had been identified as having 
special educational or emotional needs to develop confidence and self esteem. 
Whilst offering a good aerobic activity it also helped with coordination, suppleness 
and poise. These skills then benefit the children, particularly those with autism, in the 
classroom. Currently a shortened five week course is run in association with the 

Page 6



Children Services Task and Finish Panel Friday, 5 November 2010 

3 

‘Loughton Flyers’ and includes activities and games provided by the Tottenham 
Hotspur Foundation. 
 
Originally the courses were funded by Essex County but this had now been 
withdrawn this past summer; however local head teachers felt it to be so valuable 
that the Rural Local Delivery Group had decided to fund the project itself for its 
thirteen member schools. 
 
The Panel agreed that this was an innovative way of helping children with low self-
esteem. They noted that trampolining was also used with children with physical 
disabilities, such as wheelchair users, by means of a special hoist and extra helpers. 
Officers were looking at taking this into a joint venture with Waltham Forest and 
members agreed that we should be looking at entering into partnership arrangements 
with other organisations in the current economic climate. 
 
Councillor Brookes concluded that the Primary School Trampolining Project was an 
excellent scheme and that EFDC should continue supporting it. 
 
4.  Councillor L Wagland reported that:  

• She was still waiting for ‘Kids Company’ to get back to her.  
• She noted that Essex County Council would pay foster parents more 

money to avoid children being put into care as this would still save more 
that it would cost for putting children into care. Redbridge Council had 
come to this conclusion a long time ago. 

• Caroline Wiggins to report to the next meeting on the Killed or Seriously 
Injured statistics. 

• Councillor Knapman to report back to the next meeting. 
 

10. UPDATING REPORT FROM OFFICERS.  
 
Officers played the Panel a short DVD on the various events and initiatives that the 
council put on over the years. 
 
Gill Wallis, the Community Development Officer, then reported on the Council’s 
programme for children and young persons from her team’s perspective. 
 
1. Crucial Crew was for year  6s (10 to 11 years old) and held  once a year at 
Gilwell Park where various organisations (West Essex PCT, Essex Police, Essex Fire 
& Rescue Services, Road Safety Officers etc.) worked with the children on safety 
scenarios. 
 
2. The Reality Road show was held for older (year 9s) young people. Officers 
went out to secondary schools, where they gave them more sophisticated messages 
about drugs and road accidents etc. this was first piloted last year and proved very 
successful.  
 
3. The Safer Communities Team were also having a campaign called ‘Bang out 
of order’ which centred around Halloween and Fireworks night by talking to Primary 
schools about behaviour and consequences.  
 
4. A Positive Introductions programme was set up to get skate ramps and a 
synthetic skating rink and then use the ‘captive audience’ to involve them in work on 
drugs awareness etc. 
 

Page 7



Children Services Task and Finish Panel Friday, 5 November 2010 

4 

All these were funded by the Home Office and not from Council funds. 
 
Other things that Community Development delivers include: 

• Play schemes for 5 to 11 year olds are run in the school holidays with funded 
places for children from disadvantaged families; 

• They also have a ‘play in the park’ Play Ranger initiative that encourages 
families to use open spaces; 

• In conjunction with Country Care, the Green Team initiative is delivered which 
encourages environmental volunteers for the future; and 

• There was also the EFDC Youth Council and Young Citizen of the Year. 
 
The Panel noted that nowadays funding was becoming scarcer, with smaller pots of 
money being available and more people/organisations applying for it. They decided 
that it was important to show how EFDC make use of its resources and how it 
innovates and how well it works with its partners. 
 
Felicity Hall, the Council’s Arts Officer, said they were currently raising the profile of 
the Cripsey Brook, nature reserve. They have an artist working with year 5 primary 
school children who take them on site to work on various projects. They had made a 
film and had created and performed a dance performance, all to launch Cripsey 
Brook. 
 
The Arts section also runs a variety of events throughout the summer including: 

• Various family fun days; 
• Theatre groups – touring around libraries; 
• Animation workshops; 
• Films that are taken around to various venues in the district (as there are no 

cinemas in our district); 
• In 2012 they will hold a 4 day film festival; and  
• Dance classes for schools. 

 
James Warwick, the Sport Development Officer, informed the Panel of three projects 
coming up. They were: 

• Healthy Living Festival coming up in January 2011 in Ongar then Debden. 
This was six weeks of activities, courses and classes on food and cooking 
and also looking to have various sports classes;  

• To re-launch the ‘Body Care’ for primary schools, targeting year 6 pupils, 
focusing on sports, fitness, biology, and healthy eating. They were looking to 
replace MEND with this ‘Body Care’ project. They would be working with the 
Thomas Willingale School and Shelly Primary School and would have 
allotments installed at both schools and organise an ‘inter-generational’ day of 
activities; 

• 2012 Olympic project – working with local sport clubs to provide 4 to 6 weeks 
taster sessions for young people. They were looking for funding for this at 
present. 

 
They were also: 

• Holding a free style football competition, the prize being a 6 month contract 
with Tottenham Hotspur FC; 

• And a ‘Health Works’ project which started in mid November. They had 
secured £80 thousand funding from Harlow Health Centre Plus. It was aimed 
at 11 to 19 year olds, focusing on sexual health, drugs and obesity. If 
successful they would run it again in the future. 

 

Page 8



Children Services Task and Finish Panel Friday, 5 November 2010 

5 

Julie Chandler, Assistant Director Community Services, updated the Panel on Essex 
County Council’s children services who had received an unfavourable Ofsted report. 
They had set up various trust boards and commissioned new services in October 
2009 and were assessed again in summer 2010 by Ofsted who thought that they had 
not improved very much since the last inspection. They have since set up a new 
organisation, the “West Essex Local Children’s Commissioning Board” with a new 
structure designed to change things. They were also looking into commissioning third 
parties to provide for adolescent and mental health services. At a recent meeting 
they had made it clear that only £100k was to be made available to our district for all 
current children services. Officers voiced their concerns about this and are in top 
level negotiations with ECC at present and will report the outcome to Cabinet. 
 

11. TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
The Panel then looked at their terms of reference and noted for item 3, as ECC were 
currently looking at how youth services are provided, the District may have some say 
on how it was developed.  
 
The Panel also voiced their concerns about the ECC restructuring of the Children 
and Youth services in April. 
 
Item 4 of the Terms of Reference referred to the safeguarding children’s board and 
the Panel noted that they were not reporting back on referred cases within the seven 
day period specified and were taking much longer. 
 

12. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The Panel agreed that the next meeting should be held at the beginning of January 
2011 if possible. The Democratic Services Officer was to find a suitable date and 
agree it with the Panel Chairman. 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



EPPING FOREST TRAMPOLINING PROJECT 
 

Run by the Sports Development Team, by Fabrizio Luca Ferrari & James Warwick 
at Epping Sports Centre 

 
Background 
 
Although the District Council has no statutory obligation to provide sports activities 
for children and young people, it is generally accepted as being a good thing to do 
for a number of reasons.  The introduction of the National Curriculum and an 
increased emphasis on testing, results and league tables has meant that state 
schools, which cater for 93% of the child population, have often less time to devote 
to sport than previously.   Research has shown that young people's participation in 
sport & physical activities in the UK has declined, particularly among teenage girls.  
The UK's figures are much less than, for example, New Zealand's or Australia's.  
Childhood obesity is now recognized nationally as a serious health problem.  
Children who exercise regularly are much more likely to do this as adults, so 
contributing to a healthier adult population in future, which will cost the state less! 
 
Aims 
 
The aim of the trampolining programme is to help children who have been 
identified as having special educational needs, emotional needs or social needs, 
develop confidence and self-esteem. 
 
Project Delivery 
 
(i) The project was identified following consultation with local primary head 
teachers who recognised that a trampolining activity would help improve self-
esteem and educational attainment of many special needs pupils within 
mainstream education.  Twenty years ago many schools, including primary 
schools would have had their own trampolines.  As health & safety regulations 
have tightened many schools can no longer offer an activity like trampolining. 
 
Pupils perceive trampolining as 'fun'.   Whilst offering a good aerobic activity it also 
helps with coordination, suppleness and poise.   These skills then benefit the 
children, particularly those with autism, in the classroom. 
 
(ii) The project has been run at central locations e.g. Epping and Ongar Sports 
Centres, and the children have been brought in by coach from their schools 
accompanied by learning support assistants.  Originally the project was run for ten 
weeks at a time.  The Sports Development Team successfully applied for funding 
from the Performance Reward Grants offered by Essex County Council, but this 
funding was stopped in the summer term as part of the 'cuts' made following the 
change of Government in May.  However, local head teachers felt it to be so 
valuable that the Rural Local Delivery Group has decided to fund the project itself 
for its thirteen member schools.  The courses have been shortened to five weeks, 
and activities and games provided by a Tottenham Hotspur Foundation have been 
added to the programme. 

>>>>> 
 

Minute Item 9

Page 7Page 11



2 
Evaluation 
 
Outcomes are assessed by structured questioning of teachers (who are monitoring 
the children’s progress) and of the children themselves.    This is done before, 
during and after participation in the project.   The attached case study notes refer.  
As well as improved confidence and self-esteem, the assessments show 
increased concentration in the classroom and improvements in reading and 
spelling.  
 
Recommendations to the Task & Finish Panel 
 
The primary schools Trampolining Project is an excellent scheme and EFDC 
should continue to enable the Sports Development Team to provide this 
programme. 
 
The project delivers benefits which most primary schools on their own can no 
longer hope to do. 
 
It successfully promotes physical and mental health in a group of children 
identified as having special educational, emotional and social needs. 
 
The Sports Development Team has been very successful in attracting outside 
funding for the project. 
 
 
Case studies - see appendix attached. 

Page 8Page 12



 

Page 9Page 13



 
 

 

Page 10Page 14



 
 

 

Page 11Page 15



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda Item 6

Page 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



A
genda Item

 8

P
age 21

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 32

T
his page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN SERVICES TASK AND FINISH PANEL: TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
Origin: 
 
The Cabinet at its meeting on 8 March 2010 considered a report about Essex Children’s Trust. The 
Children’s Act 2004 provided the legal underpinning for the national framework established by 
“Every Child Matters: Change for Children” with District Councils having a duty to cooperate in the 
making of arrangements to improve well being for children and young people 19 years or under. 
The most specific duty is to safeguard and promote the welfare of children alongside the more 
general “duty to cooperate” within Children’s Trust arrangements. 
 
At the inaugural meeting of the Essex Children’s Trust Partnership Board on 27 November 2009 it 
had been agreed that a Memorandum of Agreement be entered into by all the constituent partners 
with the aim of demonstrating a commitment to a shared approach and to get all the partners 
working together to achieve common objectives. 
 
The Cabinet decided that the Memorandum of agreement should not be signed as it did not appear 
to be clear, concise and contain specific proposals to safeguard the welfare of children or an 
assurance that Essex County Council would embrace best practice. The cabinet expressed the view 
that the emphasis appeared to be on bureaucracy rather than results, with as much responsibility as 
possible delegated to the borough and district councils. The Cabinet also requested that a Task and 
Finish Scrutiny Panel should be established to examine the Council’s approach to Children’s 
Services and its provision throughout the District. 
 
At its meeting on 15 April 2010, the Overview and scrutiny Committee agreed that a Task and 
Finish Scrutiny Panel should be established to examine the Council’s approach to Children’s 
Services and its provision throughout the District and to review the provision of the Essex County 
Council Youth Service within the District. 
 
Terms of Reference: 
 
 
 

1. To review the purpose, operation and effectiveness of Children’s Services in Essex and the 
new Essex structure. 

 
2. To review current provision of children’s and young people’s services in the District including 

identifying the level of activity directly provided by the Council and the key responsibilities 
devolved to the Council under the Children’s Trust arrangements. 

 
3. To review the provision of Essex County Council Youth Services in the Epping Forest 

District, seeking to identify future needs and how these can best be met by the various 
Agencies involved in the delivery of Young People’s Services. 

 
4. To review current arrangements for Safeguarding and Promoting the Welfare of Epping 

Forest’s Children, seeking to identify communication pathways and effectiveness of 
information sharing, including: 

 

• the Council’s own policies and procedures; 
• West Essex Stay Safe Group;  
• ECC Stay Safe Group, and, 
• Essex Safeguarding Children Board 

 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 33



CHILDREN SERVICES TASK AND FINISH PANEL: TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
 
 
Aims and Objectives: 
 
To gather evidence and information in relation to the topics through the receipt of data, 
presentations and by participation in fact finding visits; 
 
To consult with Partners, Agencies, Stakeholders and Users of the services under review, to 
establish key issues and future need;  
 
To evaluate all relevant facts in relation to the topics under review in an objective way and to 
produce recommendations for future action accordingly; 
 
To establish whether there are any resource implications arising out of the topics under review and 
advise Cabinet for inclusion in the Budget Process 2011/12; and 
 
To report back to Overview and Scrutiny Committee at appropriate intervals and to submit any final 
reports in the proposed Corporate Format for consideration by O & S, the Cabinet and Council. 
 
TIMESCALE ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

Commencement September  2010 September 2010 
Finish 
1.  Interim report to include 
any budgetary items for the 
next budget round. 
 
2. As a time limited review - 
to end by April 2011. 
 
 
 

 
By December 2010 (if 
needed). 
 
 
 
April  2011 

Officers to consult Finance to establish 
if the Panel should put an interim bid 
for next years budget round. 

 

Page 34


	Agenda
	4 Notes from the Last Meeting
	6 Update on further review of West Children's Commissioning and Delivery Board (previously West Essex Children's Trust Board)
	8 Local Priority Fund for Young People and potential reductions in Local Funding
	13 Review Terms of Reference and Work Undertaken by Panel to Date

